
Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.

Please ask for:
Gurdip Paddan

20 September 2018

Dear Councillor

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
AUDIT COMMITTEE to be held on Monday 1 October 2018 at 7.30pm in the Council 
Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE

Yours faithfully

Corporate Director
Public Protection, Planning and Governance

A G E N D A
PART 1

1.  SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS 

To note any substitution of Committee members made in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rules 19-22.

2.  APOLOGIES 

3.  MINUTES 

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 28 June 2018 
(previously circulated).

4.  ACTIONS UPDATE 

To note that there is nothing to report on the status of actions agreed at the last 
Committee meeting.

Public Document Pack



5.  NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 12 

6.  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS 

To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this agenda.

7.  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS 

Up to fifteen minutes will be available for questions from members of the public on 
issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions.

8.  RISK MANAGEMENT (Pages 5 - 12)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance), 
which brings to Members’ attention the current strategic and top operational risks 
facing the Council, as determined by Corporate Management Team and Heads of 
Service.  These risks have been reviewed at the performance clinic in August 2018 
and reflect the assessments in place for the quarter July to October 2018.  

9.  SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE - PROGRESS REPORT (Pages 13 - 24)

Report of the Shared Internal Audit Service which provides an update on the 
progress in delivering the Annual Audit Plan for 2018-2019 as at 14 September 
2018.

10.  SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE - ANNUAL REPORT (Pages 25 - 38)

Report of the Shared Internal Audit Service asking Members to note the Annual 
Report.

11.  ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (Pages 39 - 
62)

Report of Ernst & Young LLP providing a summary of the findings from the 
2017/18 audit of the Council.

12.  SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION 

13.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

The Committee is asked to resolve:

That under Section 100(A) (2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 14 (if any) on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information 
as defined in Section 100A (3) and Part I of Schedule 12A of the said Act as 
amended.



In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information.

PART II

14.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN EXEMPT NATURE AT THE DISCRETION OF 
THE CHAIR 

Circulation: Councillors N.Pace (Chairman)
G.Michaelides (Vice-Chairman)
J.Boulton
J.Broach

S.Markiewicz
S.Roberts
P.Zukowskyj

D.Bell (Executive Member, Resources)

Corporate Management Team
Press and Public (except Part II Items)

If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Gurdip 
Paddan, Governance Service on 01707357349 or email – democracy@welhat.gov.uk 



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I
Main author: Andy Cremer
Executive Member: Fiona Thomson

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 1ST OCTOBER 2018
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND 
GOVERNANCE)

RISK MANAGEMENT

1 Executive Summary

1.1 This report brings to Members’ attention the current strategic and top operational risks 
facing the Council, as determined by Corporate Management Team and Heads of Service.  
These risks have been reviewed at the performance clinic in August 2018 and reflect the 
assessments in place for the quarter July to October 2018.  

2 Recommendation

2.1 Members  are asked to:

 Note the attached current Strategic Risk Register and top operational risks, and 
particularly:

 Note comments in respect of each risk where shown.

3 Explanation

3.1 Appendix A shows the strategic risk register, which was developed following an Executive 
Board workshop in January 2017, and which has been refined since.  Each strategic risk 
has ownership by a Corporate Director and an Executive Member.  Appendix B shows the 
top operational risks.

3.2 The implementation of the new ‘Clearview’ project management, performance and risk 
system is now complete, and this report shows the risks as recorded on this system.

3.3 Members should note that the scoring methodology is now impact2 x likelihood, which will 
reflect in the scores, for example a risk of impact = 4 and likelihood – 4 will now score 64, 
not 16 as previously.  As a full review of risk registers has been undertaken as part of the 
implementation, some of the risks may be differently framed compared to previously.  

4 Legal Implications

4.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that “[a] relevant authority must ensure 
that it has a sound system of internal control which [among other matters] includes 
effective arrangements for the management of risk.”

5 Financial Implications

5.1 There are none directly arising from this report, though of course any risk event may have 
its own financial consequences.

Page 5

Agenda Item 8



6 Risk Management Implications

6.1 Failing to maintain adequate and effective arrangements for the management of risk may 
lead to risk events not being foreseen, an inadequate response to a risk event occurring 
and a failure to exploit opportunities.

7 Security and Terrorism Implications

7.1 None.

8 Procurement Implications

8.1 None.

9 Climate Change Implications

9.1 None.

10 Health and Wellbeing Implications

10.1 None.

11 Communication and Engagement

11.1 None.

12 Link to Corporate Priorities

12.1 The subject of this report supports all council priorities in that the effective management of 
risk is essential to the achievement of objectives.

13 Equality and Diversity

13.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out in connection with the 
proposals that are set out in this report as it relates purely to monitoring information.

Name of Author: Andy Cremer
Title:  Risk and Resilience Manager

Date: August 2018

Background Papers:

Appendix A – Strategic Risk Register July 2018

Appendix B – Top operational risks July 2018

Page 6



Risk Report

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Community Consultation and Engagement Description: Failure
to properly consult customers in line with legislative and regulatory
requirements (as appropriate to relevant service areas). Failure to involve
communities when planning services. Consequences: Intervention by
regulatory bodies, Legal - challenge, Reputational damage, Additional
costs, Inadequate service shaping

Simone Chinman
Russell

Alliance Strategy

Borough Panel

Corporate Strategy - Customer Services Strategy

Corporate Strategy - Tenant Involvement
Strategy (Housing)

Policy and Procedure Framework

Regular consultation exercises carried out by
services

Tenants’ Panel

Current Score

32

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: New recent consultation exercises: Customer
Services Strategy - agreeing the council's principles of
customer services Equality Scheme - agreeing the council's
equality objectives

Comment Last Updated: 09/07/2018 16:56:35

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Management of Council Owned Housing Property Assets
Description: Failure to provide and maintain council housing property
assets Taking opportunities to invest in assets. Consequences: Increased
homelessness, Community impact, Economic development, Unsafe assets

Simone Chinman
Russell

Housing and Homelessness Strategy

HRA Asset Strategy/Business Plan

Current Score

32

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Work is continuing to develop the Housing and
Homelessness Strategy The Older Persons' Housing Strategy is
in the implementation stage and this includes the re-
development of Minster House The HRA Business Plan is in
development, to be launched in the autumn/winter of 2018

Comment Last Updated: 09/07/2018 17:00:26

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Equality and Diversity Description: The council failing to comply
with its legal and moral obligations to customers, staff, partners, Members
and the wider community. Consequences: Legal - Litigation, Additional
costs, Reputational damage

Simone Chinman
Russell

Equalities Impact Assessments

Equalities Training

Equality Group

HR Policies (overall framework)

Current Score

32

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Member training taking place on 16 July 2018
Equality Scheme will be going to full council 17 September 2018

Comment Last Updated: 09/07/2018 17:03:54

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Safeguarding Description: Failure to meet obligations in respect
of children, vulnerable adults and persons vulnerable to radicalisation.
Consequences: Undetected Abuse, Legal - Litigation, Reputational damage

Simone Chinman
Russell

Safeguarding Action Plan

Safeguarding Policies

Current Score

32

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: The Safeguarding Childrens and Safeguarding
Adults at Risk policies have been developed and approved by
council. New Reporting Pathways have been developed and
published Training is underway for all members of staff -
training is mandatory Members training will be refreshed and
delivered in 2018

Comment Last Updated: 09/07/2018 17:08:21

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Change Management Description: A new oneteam culture and
set of behaviours have been rolled out across the council and are now being
embedded to support our modernisation and improvement journey. This
risk addresses the consequences of any failure to robustly manage change.
Consequences: Inadequate service shaping, Additional costs, Reputational
damage

Rob Bridge Chief Executive Briefings

Communication

LGA Membership

Peer Challenge

Staff

Current Score

50

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

COMMENT: NONE

COMMENT LAST UPDATED: NONE

Appendix A

P
age 7



Use of consultants

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Staff/Workforce Description: Failure to recruit or retain staff
with key skills. Lack of resources due to high levels of sickness, turnover or
industrial action. Failure to develop and train existing staff. Breach of
legislation or failure to follow our HR policies. Impact of Council
Consequences: Legal - Litigation, HR - High Staff Turnover, Low morale,
Additional costs

Nick Long Apprenticeship Scheme

Corporate Governance - Management Assurance
Statement

Departmental Training Plans

HR - Agency Staff Policy

HR - Recruitment and Selection Process

HR - Sickness Absence Policy

HR - Workforce Development Strategy

Training and Awareness of HR Staff

Current Score

48

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Recruitment remains a challenge in certain areas

Comment Last Updated: 05/07/2018 10:23:04

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Elections Description: Failure to organise and deliver a
successful election Consequences: Reputational damage, Legal - challenge,
Additional costs

Nick Long Corporate Governance - Risk Management
Process

Elections - Managed Handover

Elections - Project Plan in Place

Staff

Training - Electoral Services

Current Score

32

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: We are monitoring the current situation carefully

Comment Last Updated: 05/07/2018 10:25:53

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Prevent Description: Not properly implementing the
government’s ‘Prevent’ agenda to address the risks of radicalisation.
Consequences: Reputational damage, Undetected Abuse, Prevent Delayed
referral to Channel, Prevent - lack of staff awareness, Poor partnership
working

Nick Long Prevent - Channel

Prevent - Lease and Hire Agreements

Prevent - Nominated Lead Officer for Prevent

Prevent - Security and Terrorism implications in
report template

Prevent - Venue Guidance

Prevent - WRAP workshops

Prevent matters discussed at Safeguarding
meetings.

Current Score

48

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: WRAP sessions are being held monthly, and we are
also training the local Police Community Support Officers. The
Risk and Resilience Manager is now a member of the county
Prevent Board, which meets quarterly.

Comment Last Updated: 03/07/2018 09:58:00

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Corporate Resilience Description: Failure to meet the
requirements of the Civil Contingencies Act 2004, including the material
failure or inadequacy of plans Failure to respond appropriately to a civil
emergency or business continuity incident, including the duty of care to
the community. Consequences: Community impact, Economic
development, Unsafe assets, Customer dissatisfaction, Reputational
damage, Poor partnership working, Intervention by regulatory bodies

Nick Long Resilience - Business Continuity Management
Process

Resilience - Care of People Plan

Resilience - Crisis Support Team

Resilience - Extended Floodline

Resilience - Local Resilience Forum

Resilience - Resilient Telecommunications

Resilience - Training and Exercising

Resilience - WHBC Emergency Plan

Current Score

50

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: A table top exercise was held on April 12th and a
live exercise is being held on September 13th. Our training
programme continues, and we have delivered sessions in
partnership with St Albans District Council. The Emergency
Plan will be reviewed during August.

Comment Last Updated: 03/07/2018 09:55:25

P
age 8



Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Health and Safety Description: Failure to maintain an adequate
and effective safety management system within the Council, including
structures, processes, control measures and allocations of responsibilities
and ensuring competence of employees, contractors and service providers.
Consequences: H&S - Injuries and ill health, Lost productivity, Sickness
absence, Legal - Litigation, Intervention by regulatory bodies,
Reputational damage

Nick Long H&S - Collective Responsibility of Executive
Board

H&S - Corporate Health and Safety Policy

H&S - Inspection and auditing

H&S - Map of the extent of the undertaking

H&S - Periodic Inspection of plant and equipment.

H&S - Risk and Resilience Team

H&S - Risk Assessment Policy

H&S - Safety Director Role

H&S - Staff Induction and Training

Current Score

16

Indicator

2

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Policy reviews continue and are on target. A new
apprentice has commenced in the Risk and Resilience Team
and is contributing effectively to the work of the team.

Comment Last Updated: 03/07/2018 09:56:45

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Local Plan Description: Risk that Local Plan will be found
unsound. Inspector has asked Council to find at least 4,000 more homes in
plan period, by carrying out new Green Belt Study. New NPPF likely to
introduce penalties if councils do not meet housing needs. Consequences:
Economic development, Financial - affects on receipts, Economic - inward
investment, Economic - local infrastructure, Economic - new facilities,
Environment - hostile developments, Economic - loss of funding,
Reputational damage

Nick Long Planning - Committees

Planning - Consultation

Planning - Evidence

Planning - Project Plan

Planning - Section 106 and CIL

Current Score

48

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: The public examination is ongoing. The inspector
has asked the Council to carry out a further green belt study to
help identify sites for additional housing, to reach the objective
assessment of need for 16,000 homes. There is a risk that the
plan will be found unsound if the Council does not seek to meet
this level of need.

Comment Last Updated: 19/07/2018 18:46:30

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Finance Description: Plans for meeting the growing budget gap
are not delivered on time to ensure continued sufficient resources to pay
for services. Consequences: Finance - WHBC runs out of money,
Reputational damage, Service delivery - loss/reduction, Financial - affects
on receipts, Service delivery - can't met demand

Ka Ng Finance - Annual Governance Statement

Finance - budget challenge process

Finance - budget preparation process

Finance - budgetary control by managers

Finance - capital programme

Finance - external audit

Finance - Finance Procedure Rules

Finance - Financial Information System (Agresso)

Finance - HRA Business Plan

Finance - internal audit

Finance - Medium Term Financial Plan

Finance - Treasury Management Policy

Finance - use and control of reserves and balances

Property - Asset Management Plan

Current Score

50

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: There is a challenge to meet the targets, but we
have a large number of robust controls and processes in place
in order for us to meet the savings requirements. Work is
underway on the 2019/20 budget, with a review currently
being undertaken of the medium term financial strategy, and a
review of recent governmant consultations on grant funding.

Comment Last Updated: 30/07/2018 10:13:21

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Communication Description: Failure to communicate the
Council's priorities, to actively manage the Council's reputation, to manage
the Council's messages, to mainstream communications and build
ownership and consensus,to consider communications, or involve the
Comms Team. Consequences: Reputational damage, Loss of trust, Comms
- inability to manage message

Ka Ng Comms - communication plan

Comms - Communications Team

Comms - Corporate Communications Strategy

Comms - media monitoring

Current Score

32

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: A fully staffed Communications team which meets
the needs of all council services (including the recently
reintegrated housing ones) has led to a re-evaluation of this
risk. Relations with local media outlets also remain good at this
time. This is in spite of some challenging communications issues
over 2017-18.

P
age 9



Comms - media trained staff and Members

Comms - surveys

Comment Last Updated: 13/02/2018 12:20:16

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - ICT Failure Description: ICT Failure Critical failure of ICT
services, for example due to virus attack, and ransomware virus attacks,
which target computers running Microsoft Windows encrypting the
personal documents , lack of network capacity, hacking, hardware failure,
etc. Consequences: ICT - loss of service

Ka Ng ICT - database updates

ICT - Disaster Recovery Plan

ICT - ICT Strategy

ICT - infrastructure review

ICT - malware detection

ICT - Temporary PSTN connection

Current Score

32

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: There is a continual battle against attacks, but we
have a large number of robust controls and processes in place
in order for us to say we are as protected as we can be, and the
likelihood is significantly reduced because of this.

Comment Last Updated: 13/02/2018 11:42:18

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Data Protection Description: The new General Data Protection
Regulations (GDPR) will replace the current Data Protection Act from May
18. It contains some onerous obligations that will have an immediate
impact. As we handle people’s data we are responsible for keeping it safe.
Consequences: Legal - Litigation, Intervention by regulatory bodies,
Reputational damage, Legal - challenge, Additional costs

Ka Ng Governance - Data Protection Policies

ICT - data encryption

Current Score

48

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: GDPR legislation came into effect in May 2018. In
preparation for this a number of policies and procedures were
implemented, and teh Data Protection Officer worked with
services to identify the areas of greater risk. Since the start of
this process, the higher risks have been adressed, and work
continues with services to minimise risks where possible.
Training has been rolled out to all staff & Councillors.

Comment Last Updated: 30/07/2018 10:16:31

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Management of Council Owned Non-Housing Property Assets
Description: Failure to provide and maintain council owned non-housing
property assets. Taking opportunities to invest in assets. Consequences:
Economic development, Unsafe assets

Ka Ng Asset Management Plan

Property Portfolio

Current Score

50

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Work continues on th property investment project,
with a number of potential sites which will meet multiple
corporate objectives. The Council has a capital work
programme in place to adequately maintain its non-housing
assets, and continues to be responsive to day to day repairs
and maintenance.

Comment Last Updated: 30/07/2018 10:10:17

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Effects of Brexit Description: Preparing the borough and council
for exiting the EU by uderstanding the effect on 1) communities and
residents, 2) businesses and economy, and 3) The council, along with any
actions we need to take. Consequences: Additional costs, Economic -
inward investment, Economic development, Community impact, Economic
- loss of funding

Andy Cremer Brexit - appropriate action plan to be produced

Corporate Governance - engagement with
Councillors

ECMT Brexit Workshop

LGA Membership

LGA support and briefings

Current Score

48

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

COMMENT: NONE

COMMENT LAST UPDATED: NONE

P
age 10



Risk Report

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Planning - Tree failure Description: The risk of failure of
a tree with resultant risk to property or life
Consequences: H&S - Injuries and ill health, Legal -
Litigation, Additional costs

Ann Macdonald Planning - Trees

Planning - Volunteers

Current Score

50

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: The tree management function has
recently been audited and given a "satisfactory
performance" rating. The appointment of a third
tree officer has added resilience to the function.

Comment Last Updated: 19/07/2018 18:42:00

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Planning - Mature Lombardy Poplars Description: Risk
of failure of mature Lombardy Poplar trees
Consequences: Unsafe assets, H&S - Injuries and ill
health, Legal - Litigation, Reputational damage

Ann Macdonald Planning - Trees

Planning - Volunteers

Current Score

100

Indicator

1

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Contractors continue to fell and grind
out the stumps of mature Lombardy Poplars. A
sufficient number of these have signs of rot and
failure to justify the decision to carry out the
comprehensive felling project.

Comment Last Updated: 19/07/2018 18:43:14

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Hsg Needs - Implementation of the Homeless Reduction
Act Description: The Act places a greater emphasis on
intervention and acting quickly to provide advice and
prevent homelessness, rather than only intervening
when it has become crisis point. It also extends the
duties placed on the council in terms of help for people.
Consequences: Legal - challenge, Additional costs,
Increased homelessness, Customer dissatisfaction

Sian Chambers Housing and Homelessness Strategy

Staff

Current Score

64

Indicator

1

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: The lead in time for implementation
of this Act, which presents the most significant
change in homeless legislation since 1977 was
very quick. A project team are currently
finalising the Housing Pathways for vulnerable
groups and re-engineering the operational
processes, to bring them in line with the new
legislation. In order to deliver the most effective
front line service, the staffing structures are
under review. The IT system is being upgraded
with the current provider, to ensure it can meet
the new legislative requirements, with a view to
considering a change of provider later in the
year, when the current contract expires.

Comment Last Updated: 13/02/2018 12:05:00

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls Current Score Latest Comment and comment date

Appendix B

P
age 11



Housing Development - Availability of sites / land /
assets Description: Lack of suitable sites for affordable
homes for development . either for direct provision by
the council or disposal and grant funding to Registered
Providers at the scale that is required . Sites need to be
deliverable , suitable to attract interest Consequences:
Increased homelessness, Financial - financial penalties,
Reputational damage, Additional costs, Poor partnership
working

Jeremy Morton Executive Board 64

Indicator

1

Comment: A new post has recently been
recruited to the Housing Development Team.
The postholder will have a focus on identifying
new opportunities and forming
partnerships/relationships with local land
owners/agents

Comment Last Updated: 13/02/2018 12:05:56

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Housing Development - delivery of affordable homes on
S106 sites Description: Housing development - securing
RP interest in sites and developers include affordable
homes Consequences: Increased homelessness, Service
delivery - can't met demand, Additional costs,
Reputational damage, Financial Implications

Jeremy Morton Housing and Homelessness Strategy

Registered Provider Frame work
Group

Staff

Use of consultants

Current Score

64

Indicator

1

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: We have been awarded an LGA grant
to commission work by a specialist consultant, to
help us identify ways to support the highest level
of affordable housing development. The report
will be available in draft at the end of February.

Comment Last Updated: 13/02/2018 12:07:55

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Housing Management - Universal Credit impact on
arrears Description: The impact of legislative universal
credit welfare changes on the level of tenant rent
account debt. Change introduced December 2017,
Consequences: Financial Implications

Simon Kiff Management of Housing Operations

Current Score

80

Indicator

1

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Monthly partnership meetings have
been set up with DWP from Hatfield Job Centre.
In addition, we have reached an agreement with
the DWP for an Income Officer to be present in
the Hatfield Job Centre every Wednesday
afternoon (starting first Wednesday in August)
and a reverse arrangement for a DWP Work
Coach to be in the Hatfield Housing Office one
day per week. This partnership approach will
allow issues to be resolved at the point of contact
to the benefit of the claimant and the council.
Once the new Income and Home Ownership
Manager is in post, operational procedures will
be reviewed and changes implemented where
necessary. Current number of tenants in receipt
of UC is 327 at end of quarter 1 with arrears
levels of 12% representing £221k of arrears
outstanding. It should however be noted that
some of the tenants receiving UC will have had
arrears previously, so UC is not the only
determining factor. This performance is being
monitored on a weekly and monthly basis at an
operational level.

Comment Last Updated: 05/07/2018 20:39:35

P
age 12



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
Audit Committee Progress Report

1 October 2018

Recommendations

Members are recommended to:
 Note the Internal Audit Progress Report for the 

period to 14 September 2018, and
 Note the proposed amendments to the 

2018/19 Annual Audit Plan.

Page 13

Agenda Item 9



Page 2

Contents

1 Introduction and Background
1.1 Purpose
1.2 Background

2 Audit Plan Update
2.1 Delivery of Audit Plan and Key Findings
2.5 Proposed Amendments to the 2018/19 Annual Audit 

Plan
2.9 High Priority Recommendations
2.12 Performance Management

Appendices

A   Progress against the 2018/19 Audit Plan

B   2018/19 Audit Plan Start Dates Agreed with 
Management

C Assurance and Finding Definitions 2018/19

Page 14



Page 3

1. Introduction and Background
Purpose of Report

1.1 This report details:

a) Progress made by the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) in delivering 
the Council’s Annual Audit Plan for 2018/19 as at 14 September 2018.

b) Findings for the period 8 June 2018 to 14 September 2018.
c) Details of changes to the planned start dates of audits from the approved 

2018/19 Audit Plan.
d) Proposed amendments to the 2018/19 Annual Audit report
e) An update on performance management information as at 14 September 

2018.

Background

1.2 The 2018/19 Annual Audit Plan was approved by the Audit Committee at its 
meeting on 22 March 2018.

1.3 The Audit Committee receives periodic updates of progress against the 
Annual Internal Audit Plan. This is the second report giving feedback on the 
delivery of the 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan.

1.4 The work of Internal Audit is required to be reported to a Member Body so that 
the Council has an opportunity to review and monitor an essential component 
of corporate governance and gain assurance that its internal audit provision is 
fulfilling its statutory obligations. It is considered good practice that progress 
reports also include proposed amendments to the agreed annual audit plan.

2. Audit Plan Update
Delivery of Audit Plan and Key Audit Findings

2.1 As at 14 September 2018, 41% of the 2018/19 Audit Plan days had been 
delivered (the calculation excludes contingency).  Appendix A provides a 
status update on each individual project within the audit plan.

2.2 The following final reports have been issued since 8 June 2018 (cut-off date 
for the SIAS Update Report for 24 June 2018 Audit Committee):

Audit Title Date of 
Issue

Assurance 
Level

Number of 
Recommendations

Tree Management (17/18) July 2018 Satisfactory 1 Medium, 3 Low
Community Protection 
Notices (18/19)

August 
2018 Satisfactory 1 Medium, 2 Low

Page 15



Page 4

Health and Safety (18/19) September 
2018 Satisfactory 2 Medium, 1 Low

Fire Safety (18/19) September 
2018 Satisfactory 3 Medium

2.3 Details on the status of all audits in this year’s plan can be found in Appendix 
A.

2.4 In respect of the 2018/19 plan, audits continue to be progressed in line with 
the agreed audit plan with five audits at final report stage, five audits at draft 
report stage, one audit at quality review, three audits in fieldwork, and a 
further seven audits at planning stage. Details of the status of all audits in this 
year’s plan can be found in Appendix A of this report.

Changes to Projected Audit Start Dates

2.5 To help the Committee assess progress in delivering the 2018/19 Audit Plan, 
Appendix B details agreed start dates. These dates were agreed with 
management and resources allocated accordingly. This schedule was 
designed to facilitate smoother delivery of the audit plan through the year.

2.6 There are no proposed changes to audit start dates to be reported to the 
Committee.

Proposed Amendments to Audit Plan

2.7 Since the June meeting of this Committee, the following changes to the 
2018/19 Audit Plan have been agreed with Officers of the Council:

 Anti-Fraud Arrangement Follow-Up (5 days) – audit cancelled in order to 
facilitate fraud awareness training (this has not been scheduled at the 
time of writing this report). 

 Street Scene Procurement (5 days) – an additional two days was added 
to this audit as a result of an expanded scope at the request of 
management.

2.8 Contingency in the 2018/19 Annual Audit Plan for the Council currently stands 
at 8 days.

High Priority Recommendations

2.9 Members will be aware that a Final Audit Report is issued when it has been 
agreed by management; this includes an agreement to implement the 
recommendations that have been made. 

2.10 The Council’s Principal Governance Officer is responsible for following up the 
implementation status of internal audit recommendations. 

Page 16



Page 5

2.11 We have not made any new high priority recommendation as a consequence 
of the work undertaken in the audits detailed in paragraph 2.2 above.

Performance Management

Reporting of Audit Plan Delivery Progress

2.12 Performance indicators and associated targets are approved by the SIAS 
Board on an annual basis.  The actual performance for the Council against 
the targets that are monitored in year is set out in the table below.

2.13 As at 14 September 2018, actual performance for Welwyn Hatfield Borough 
Council against the targets that can be monitored in year was as shown in the 
table below:

Performance Indicator Annual 
Target

Profiled 
Target to 

14 
September 

2018

Actual to 14 
September 2018

1. Planned Days – percentage of 
actual billable days against 
planned chargeable days 
completed (excluding unused 
contingency)

95%
45%

(138 / 309 
days)

41%
(128 / 309 days)

2. Planned Projects – percentage 
of actual completed projects to 
draft report stage against planned 
completed projects

95%
37%

(11 / 30  
projects)

33%
(10 / 30 projects)

3. Client Satisfaction with 
Conduct of the Audit – 
percentage of client satisfaction 
questionnaires returned at 
‘satisfactory’ level 

100% 100%
100%

(3 survey’s 
returned)

4. Number of High Priority Audit 
Recommendations agreed 95% 95%

N/A – No high 
priority 

recommendations 
made

2.14 In addition, the performance targets listed below are annual in nature.  
Performance against these targets will be reported on in the 2018/19 Head of 
Assurance’s Annual Report:

 5. External Auditors’ Satisfaction – the Annual Audit Letter should 
formally record whether or not the External Auditors are able to rely upon 
the range and the quality of SIAS’ work.

Page 17



Page 6

 6. Annual Plan – prepared in time to present to the March meeting of each 
Audit Committee.  If there is no March meeting then the plan should be 
prepared for the first meeting of the financial year.

 7. Head of Assurance’s Annual Report – presented at the Audit 
Committee’s first meeting of the civic year.

Page 18



APPENDIX A – PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2018/19 ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN

Page 7

2018/19 SIAS Audit Plan

RECOMMENDATIONS
AUDITABLE AREA LEVEL OF 

ASSURANCE C H M L

AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS

LEAD 
AUDITOR 

ASSIGNED

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED
STATUS / 

COMMENTS

Key Financial Systems
General Ledger 8 Yes 0.5 In Planning
Debtors 10 Yes In Planning
Creditors 10 Yes In Planning
Treasury Management 6 Yes In Planning
Council Tax 10 Yes Allocated
NDR 10 Yes Allocated
Benefits 10 Yes Allocated
Payroll 6 Yes In Planning
Housing Rents 10 Yes 0.5 In Planning
Operational Audits

Budget Monitoring 13 Yes 12.5 Draft Report Issued

Community Protection Notices Satisfactory 0 0 1 2 12 Yes 12 Final Report Issued
Public Health 10 Yes Allocated
Customer Services – Contract 
Management 10 Yes 9.5 Draft Report Issued

Voids Management 12 Yes Allocated
Housing Allocations 12 Yes Allocated
General Data Protection 
Regulations 8 Yes 1 In Planning

Agency Staff 12 Yes 11.5 Draft Report Issued

P
age 19



APPENDIX A – PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2018/19 ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN

Page 8

AUDITABLE AREA LEVEL OF 
ASSURANCE

RECOMMENDATIONS AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS

LEAD 
AUDITOR 

ASSIGNED

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED
STATUS / 

COMMENTSC H M L

Use of Consultants (including 
solicitors, barristers and 
management consultants)

10 Yes Allocated

Health and Safety Satisfactory 0 0 2 1 10 Yes 10 Final Report Issued
Parking Permits 8 Yes 7 In Fieldwork
DFG Grant Certification 2 Yes 0.5 In Fieldwork
Fire Safety Satisfactory 0 0 3 0 10 Yes 10 Final Report Issued
LEP Grant 5 Yes 4.5 Draft Report Issued
Procurement / Contracts
Street Scene Contract / 
Procurement 5 Yes 4.5 Quality Review

Counter Fraud
Anti-Fraud Arrangements – 
Follow Up 0 Yes Cancelled

Corporate Governance and Risk Management
Corporate Governance and 
Risk Management 5 Yes Allocated

IT Audits
Incident Management 11 Yes 2 In Fieldwork
Software Licence Management 11 Yes Allocated
PSN Accreditation 0 Yes Cancelled
Shared Learning and Joint Reviews
Joint Reviews 2
Shared Learning 3 1.5 Through Year

P
age 20



APPENDIX A – PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2018/19 ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN

Page 9

AUDITABLE AREA LEVEL OF 
ASSURANCE

RECOMMENDATIONS AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS

LEAD 
AUDITOR 

ASSIGNED

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED
STATUS / 

COMMENTSC H M L

Contingency & Ad Hoc Activity

Contingency & Ad Hoc Activity 8 As Required

Strategic Support
Head of Internal Audit Opinion 
2017/18 5 Yes 5 Complete

Audit Committee 8 Yes 4 Through Year
Client Meetings 6 Yes 3 Through Year
Liaison with External Audit 1 Yes Through Year
Progress Monitoring 8 Yes 4 Through Year
SIAS Development 5 Yes 5 Through Year
2019/20 Audit Planning 5 Yes Through Year
2017/18 Projects requiring completion
Community Engagement 4 Yes 3.5 Draft Report Issued
Tree Management Satisfactory 0 0 1 3 8 Yes 8 Final Report Issued
Standards and Ethics Satisfactory 0 0 0 3 7.5 Yes 7.5 Final Report Issued
Finalisation of Projects Not Applicable 0.5 Yes 0.5 Complete
Total – Welwyn Hatfield B.C.  0 0 7 9 317 128

P
age 21



APPENDIX B – 2018/19 AUDIT PLAN START DATES AGREED WITH MANAGEMENT

Page 10

April May June July August September

Agency Staff

Draft Report Issued

Community Protection 
Notices

Final Report Issued

Parking Permits

In Fieldwork

Customer Services – 
Contract Management

Draft Report Issued

Budget Monitoring

Draft Report Issued
Use of Consultants

Tree Management (17/18)

Final Report Issued

Health and Safety

Final Report Issued

PSN Accreditation

Cancelled

Street Scene 
Procurement

Quality Review

Incident Management

In Fieldwork

Anti-Fraud Arrangements 
Follow-Up

Cancelled

Standards & Ethics 
(17/18)

Final Report Issued

LEP Grant

Draft Report Issued

Fire Safety

Final Report Issued

DFG Grant Certification

In Fieldwork

Community Engagement 
(17/18)

Draft Report Issued

October November December January February March

General Ledger

In Planning

Treasury Management

In Planning
Benefits Voids Management Public Health Corporate Governance 

and Risk Management

Debtors

In Planning
Council Tax

Payroll

In Planning
Housing Allocations

Creditors

In Planning
NDR

Housing Rents

In Planning

Software Licence 
Management

GDPR – deferred from 
April

In Planning

P
age 22



APPENDIX C – ASSURANCE AND FINDINGS DEFINITIONS 2018/19

Page 11

Assurance Level Definition

Good
The design and operation of the internal control framework is effective, thereby ensuring that the key 
risks in scope are being well managed and core objectives will likely be achieved. There are minor 
reportable audit findings.

Satisfactory The internal control framework is largely working well in managing the key risks in scope, with some 
audit findings related to the current arrangements.  

Limited
The system of internal control is only partially effective, with important audit findings in key areas. 
Improvement in the design and/or operation of the control environment is necessary to gain assurance 
risks are being managed to an acceptable level, and core objectives will be achieved.

No The system of internal control has serious gaps, and controls are not effective in managing the key risks 
in scope. It is highly unlikely that core objectives will be met without urgent management intervention.

Priority Level Definition

C
or

po
ra

te

Critical
Audit findings which, in the present state, represent a serious risk to the organisation as a 
whole, i.e. reputation, financial resources and / or compliance with regulations. Management 
action to implement the appropriate controls is required immediately.

High
Audit findings indicate a serious weakness or breakdown in control environment, which, if 
untreated by management intervention, is highly likely to put achievement of core service 
objectives at risk. Remedial action is required urgently.

Medium
Audit findings which, if not treated by appropriate management action, are likely to put 
achievement of some of the core service objectives at risk. Remedial action is required in a 
timely manner.Se

rv
ic

e

Low / Advisory
Audit findings indicate opportunities to implement good or best practice, which, if adopted, will 
enhance the control environment. The appropriate solution should be implemented as soon as 
is practically possible.

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

Shared Internal Audit 
Service 

 
Annual Report 

 

2017/18 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 10



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2017/18 

Annual Report Contents 
 
Introduction & Highlights 1 

Levels of Delivery 2 

Shared learning – The Power of Partnership 3 

Developing Our Processes 4 

First Class Customer Service 5 

Performance - Outcomes 6 

Performance Indicators 7 

Future Developments 8 

Our Board Members 9 

Appendix A:  SIAS Trading Account  10 

Appendix B:  Definitions  11 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Page 26

http://www.stevenage.gov.uk/
http://www.hertsmere.gov.uk/Home.aspx
http://www.hertsdirect.org/


Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2017/18 

Page 1 

Introduction and Highlights 
 
Welcome to the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) Annual Report for 
2017/18.    
 
Since the Service was established in 2011, one of its key business delivery 
objectives has been to work in a manner that demonstrates a practical 
understanding of the pressures that its partners face. This is something 
that is even more important given the current financial climate.    
 
To this end, in 2017/18 SIAS worked with partners to revise the Service’s 
structure with a view to accommodating an agreed reduction in the level of 
audit work commissioned whilst still ensuring that the Service was able to 
provide appropriate levels of coverage to fulfil its statutory obligations.   
 
As part of this process, SIAS sought to ensure that client audit plans were 
delivered with the optimum blend of internal and external resource; 
something that would not only satisfy its current client commitments in the 
most efficient and cost effective manner, but which would also future proof 
the Service in the medium to long term.   
 
All of this has only been possible with the commitment and dedication of 
both, the in-house team and our external service provider, as well as the 
co-operation of our partners.  When looking to the future, the Service will 
continue to combine its understanding of local government practices with a 
growing knowledge of the risks and controls associated with private sector 
business approaches; something that is needed to help partners as they 
evolve in that direction. 
 
We are very proud of the work of the SIAS Team and are delighted to be 
able to share some of the highlights of our working year in this report. 

 

Terry Barnett and Chris Wood 

Head of Assurance for the Shared Internal Audit Service / 
SIAS Audit Manager 

June 2018 

 

 

Page 27



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2017/18 

Page 2 

Levels of Delivery 
 
Whilst the Service faced some challenges during the year arising from staff 
sickness absences and vacancies held over in lieu of the service 
restructure, it nonetheless very nearly achieved its overall target of 
delivering 95% of days commissioned by clients.  In the final analysis, this 
was 94% and is a testament to the hard work and resilience of the SIAS 
Team. 
 
Despite the challenges referred to above, the Service was also able to 
deliver 93% of its audit reviews to draft report stage by the close of the 
year and through the prioritisation of outstanding work in the final quarter 
ensured that this did not impact on the integrity of the assurance opinions 
given to clients.  

Figure 1: Percentage of audits days delivered 

 

Figure 2: Percentage of audits to draft stage 

Good 
performance 
despite resilience 
challenges… 

Page 28



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2017/18 

Page 3 

Shared Learning - The Power of Partnership 
Shared learning happens through the dialogue we have with others. It has 
long been part of the vision of our Board that the service acts to facilitate 
the sharing of learning across its partners. A shared learning culture, both 
formal and informal, is embedded through our team, our sister services 
within Assurance and across our partners and opportunities abound to 
publicise and promote issues big and small.  
 
Over the course of 2017/18, our quarterly shared learning papers 
continued to be a regular feature at management boards, governance 
groups and team meetings across our partners. General learning points 
arising from our work and the wider local government environment have 
been disseminated through our regular papers with contributions from 
across our Assurance Service. The highlight of the last year was a special 
edition covering the topical issue of GDPR Preparedness. This dovetailed 
neatly with the rollout of GDPR audits across our partners. At the time of 
going to press on this Board report, planning had commenced on the next 
shared learning paper reviewing the high priority recommendations arising 
from our work across all partners. 
 
In addition to our shared learning papers and newsletters, we hosted a 
very well received workshop for our partners and other stakeholders on 
Local Authority Trading and Commercial Governance, utilising the 
commercial expertise of our co-sourced audit delivery partners BDO.  
 

 
 
During the course of the year, we facilitated a cross-partner process of self-
assessment against the National Crime Agency’s Serious Organised Crime 
Checklist and will be sharing the key themes arising from that exercise so 
that our partners can learn from mutual good practice. 
 
Our involvement with ‘Audit Together’, a strategic alliance of similar audit 
partnerships, our audit delivery partners (BDO) and an array of contacts 
through bodies such as the Home Counties Chief Internal Auditors Group 
have been invaluable in sharing experiences and ideas that help us to 
develop as a service in response to client need and the ever evolving field 
of internal audit. Our staff, partners and Audit Committee members 
continue to provide helpful challenge, which causes us to pause and think 
about matters big and small, whether about assurance levels, 
recommendation priorities, professional judgement and intellectual curiosity 
or about our skills, performance, systems and culture. 

 

Our quarterly shared 
learning papers are 
now a regular feature at 
management boards, 
governance groups and 
team meetings across 
our partners  

Page 29



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2017/18 

Page 4 

Developing Our Processes 
SIAS is committed to providing its services to clients in the most cost 
effective and resilient way possible. The development of its in-house time 
recording and audit plan management system is an excellent example of a 
service development that has delivered on both counts. 
 
For SIAS, a time recording system is an integral part of its business 
processes, providing the performance data for the Management Team to 
oversee progress on audit plan delivery for individual clients or the whole 
service.  Similarly, it is an important element of the performance 
management mechanisms for the staff within the Service. 
 
Since its creation in 2011 SIAS, had been using a modified version of a 
proprietary Audit Management System product, incurring costs for both 
licensing and maintenance.  As the Service developed, it became clear that 
this solution was not able to provide the level of detailed management 
information that the Management Team required for effective performance 
management at a variety of levels.  Further, the approach of using an 
external supplier always carried a risk associated with continuity of service. 
 
To address these issues, the SIAS Management Team commissioned the 
County Council’s Improvement Team to modify an existing time recording 
system that it had developed for another County Council Service.  This 
new solution has now been in operation within SIAS since May 2017 and is 
successfully meeting the needs of the Service whilst also providing 
opportunities for further service improvements. 
 
The technology for the new system is based around established Microsoft 
products (Excel and Access) and the costs associated with system 
maintenance are absorbed within existing corporate overheads. This has 
allowed the Service to not only secure a financial saving of circa £3,000 
per annum but, more importantly, to future proof its existing business 
processes. 
   
 

 

Financial savings 
combined with 
greater resilience…  

 

Page 30



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2017/18 

Page 5 

First Class Customer Service 
 
In order to monitor our effectiveness and improve our service, at the end of 
each assignment we request the completion of a short satisfaction survey.  
We have been given and have acted upon invaluable improvement ideas, 
and we are proud of the fact that in 2017/18 we have received 98% 
satisfactory or higher feedback rating from our customers; an improvement 
on the previous year. 

 

Some of the comments that accompany the formal scoring document are 
shown below:   

 

 “An excellent professional service was provided and we were kept 
informed fully throughout the audit” 
 

 “Clear understanding of process in place, transition being applied and 
recognition of best practice much appreciated. Extremely prompt 
delivery of Final Report” 

 

 “Very helpful report, answering key questions senior management 
were requesting” 
 

 “Just to say thanks for the time and effort put into this audit, the 
process has helped me as the Property manager to not only influence 
and direct staff to tighten up their processes and procedures which has 
in the past sometimes been difficult but also given some really good 
recommendations for us to action to improve the overall management 
of evidence. I now have the power of 'Internal Audit says' to back me! 
Thank you” 

 
 
 

“Very helpful report, 
answering key 
questions senior 
management were 
requesting” 

Page 31



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2017/18 

Page 6 

Performance - Outcomes 
 
SIAS worked on 292 assurance and other projects during the year, giving 
the assurance opinions and recommendations detailed in the charts below.   
 
For those pieces which resulted in a formal assurance opinion, the 
distribution of opinions is set out in figure 3 below: 

 
Figure 3:  Distribution of Audit Opinions 2017/18 
 

 
 

For those audits where recommendations were required, the priority ratings 
are set out in figure 4 below: 

 
Figure 4:  Prioritisation of Recommendations 2017/18 
 

292 assurance and 

other projects 

identifying 731 
recommendations 

Page 32



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2017/18 

Page 7 

Performance Indicators  
 
The overall business performance of SIAS is monitored by the SIAS Board 
by means of a balanced scorecard which provides a range of measures by 
which progress can be evaluated. 
 
The overall performance of SIAS against our key performance indicators is 
reported below. 

Table 1: SIAS Business Performance 

Indicator Target Actual as at 
31 March 

2017 

Actual as at 
31 March 

2018 

Commentary  

Progress against 
plan: actual days 
delivered as a 
percentage of 
planned days. 

95% 95% 94% 

 

Despite resilience 
challenges in year, the 
service nonetheless 
came very close to 
achieving both of its 
targets.  

 

Progress against 
plan: audits issued 
in draft by 31 
March  

95% 86% 93% 

 

Client satisfaction  

 

Satisfactory 
and above 

 

95% 95% 
Continued good 
performance in this area 

 

 

Financial Performance of SIAS  
SIAS began operating on a fully traded basis in 2012/13. 
 
Appendix A sets out the summary financial position at 31 March 2018.  
The partners determined that the service should aim to build a small 
surplus and to consider the financial position of the service on a three year 
rolling basis.   
 
The intention of this is to smooth the impact of any unforeseen events 
impacting on trading performance in future years. 

 

Page 33



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2017/18 

Page 8 

Future Developments 
 

 
  
Following the completion of the SIAS restructure in 2017/18, the coming 
year has a strong focus on consolidation, stability and revisiting the ‘nuts 
and bolts’ of the service to ensure that we have sound foundations for the 
future. 
 
Our focus will be on:  
 

 Developing and enhancing the role of our Client Audit Managers,  

 Reviewing and refining our shared learning offering,  

 Updating our SIAS guidance, templates, processes and procedures,  

 Further integrating and simplifying of our performance, work allocation 
and information systems, 

 Revisiting training and skills needs, as well as technical updates,  

 Retendering for our co-sourced audit delivery partners, and 

 Completing recruitment to our new Trainee Auditor posts. 
 
The changing face of service delivery within Local Government also 
presents the Service with new challenges and a need to provide higher 
levels of consultancy advice on the control aspect of the commercial 
ventures that clients are engaging in. 
 
The increased use of, or access to, data analytics tools is likely to become 
a key feature in the work of the Service going forward.  The use of these 
tools will allow the Service to facilitate delivery of the widest coverage of 
process driven areas.

Page 34



Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2017/18 

Page 9 

Our Board Members 
The SIAS Board provides strategic direction and oversight for the 
partnership, bringing a wealth of local government experience and insight 
to our operation. 

In 2017/18, our Board members were as follows: 

 

Clare Fletcher Assistant Director 
(Finance and Estates) 

Stevenage Borough 
Council 

Sajida Bijle Corporate Director Hertsmere Borough 
Council 

Steven 
Pilsworth 

Assistant Director 
Finance, Resources & 
Performance 

Hertfordshire County 
Council 

Ian Couper Service Director 
(Resources) 

North Hertfordshire 
District Council 

Ka Ng Executive Director – 
Resources, Environment 
and Cultural Services 

Welwyn Hatfield 
Borough Council 

Isabel Brittain Head of Strategic Finance 
& Property 

East Herts Council 

Jo Wagstaffe Shared Director of 
Finance 

Watford Borough 
Council and Three 
Rivers District Council 

Terry Barnett Head of Assurance SIAS 

 

  

 

Page 35



Appendix A: SIAS TRADING ACCOUNT 2017/18 

Page 10 

SIAS cost centre: revised budget against outturn 2017/18 
 

     Budget  Outturn  

     £  £  

 

Salaries & Salary Related     1,145,981  1,061,892  

Partner / Consultancy Costs     73,125  213,038  

Transport     8,500  5,904  

Supplies     18,483  9,048  

Office Accommodation Cost     17,005  17,005  

         

Total expenditure     1,263,094  1,306,887  

     

Income     1,279,034  1,313,530  

Net (surplus) / deficit    (15,940)  (6,643)  

 

 

P
age 36



Appendix B: Definitions Of Assurance Levels and Priority of Recommendations 

Page 11 

 
 
 
 

Levels of assurance  

Full Assurance There is a sound system of control designed to achieve the system objectives and 
manage the risks to achieving those objectives. No weaknesses have been identified. 

Substantial Assurance Whilst there is a largely sound system of control, there are some minor weaknesses, 
which may put a limited number of the system objectives at risk. 

Moderate Assurance Whilst there is basically a sound system of control, there are some areas of weakness, 
which may put some of the system objectives at risk. 

Limited Assurance There are significant weaknesses in key control areas, which put the system objectives 
at risk. 

No Assurance Control is weak, leaving the system open to material error or abuse. 

 

Priority of recommendations 

High There is a fundamental weakness, which presents material risk to the objectives and 
requires urgent attention by management. 

Medium There is a significant weakness, whose impact or frequency presents a risk which 
needs to be addressed by management. 

Merits Attention There is no significant weakness, but the finding merits attention by management. 

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Annual Audit Letter for the year 
ended 31 March 2018

August 2018

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 11



2

Contents

Executive 
Summary

01

Purpose and 
Responsibilities

02

Financial Statement Audit

03

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) have issued a ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited 
body and via the PSAA website (www.psaa.co.uk)

The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of 
auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.

The ‘Terms of Appointment (updated 23 February 2017)’ issued by PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the 
National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and statute, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.

This Annual Audit Letter is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities. It is addressed to the Members of the audited body, and is prepared for their sole use. We, 
as appointed auditor, take no responsibility to any third party.

Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, 
you may take the issue up with your usual partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Steve Varley, our Managing Partner, 1 More London Place, 
London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do all we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any 
aspect of our service, you may of course take matters up with our professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact our professional institute.

05
Other Reporting Issues

06
Value for 

Money

04
Focused on your 

future

07
Audit fees

P
age 40



3

Executive Summary01

P
age 41



4

Executive Summary

We are required to issue an annual audit letter to Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council [‘the Council’] following completion of our audit procedures for the year ended 31 
March 2018. Below are the results and conclusions on the significant areas of the audit process.

Area of Work Conclusion

Opinion on the Council’s:

► Financial statements

Unqualified – the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council as at 31 
March 2018 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended 

► Consistency of other information published with the 
financial statements

Other information published with the financial statements was consistent with the Annual Accounts.

Concluding on the body’s arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness

We concluded that you have put in place proper arrangements to secure value for money in your use of 
resources 

Area of Work Conclusion

Reports by exception:

► Consistency of Governance Statement The Governance Statement was consistent with our understanding of the Council.

► Public interest report We had no matters to report in the public interest. 

► Written recommendations to the Council which should 
be copied to the Secretary of State

We had no matters to report. 

► Other actions taken in relation to our responsibilities 
under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014

We had no matters to report. 

Area of Work Conclusion

Reporting to the National Audit Office (NAO) on our 
review of the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts 
return (WGA). 

The Council is below the specified audit threshold of £500mn. Therefore, we did not perform any audit 
procedures on the consolidation pack.

P
age 42



5

Executive Summary (cont’d)

As a result of the above we have also:

Area of Work Conclusion

Issued a report to those charged with governance of the 
Council communicating significant findings resulting from 
our audit.

Our Audit Results Report was issued on 18 June 2018 and presented at the Audit Committee on 28 June 
2018.

Issued a certificate that we have completed the audit in 
accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 and the National Audit Office’s 
2015 Code of Audit Practice.

Our certificate was issued on 28 June 2018.

In December 2018 we will also issue a report to those charged with governance of the Council summarising the certification work we have undertaken.

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Council’s staff for their assistance during the course of our work. 

Neil Harris

Associate Partner

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

P
age 43



6

Purpose and Responsibilities02

P
age 44



7

Purpose and Responsibilities

The Purpose of this Letter

The purpose of this annual audit letter is to communicate to Members and external stakeholders, including members of the public, the key issues arising from our work, 
which we consider should be brought to the attention of the Council. 

We have already reported the detailed findings from our audit work in our 2017/18 Audit Results Report to the 28 June 2018 Audit Committee, representing those 
charged with governance. We do not repeat those detailed findings in this letter. The matters reported here are the most significant for the Council.

Responsibilities of the Appointed Auditor

Our 2017/18 audit work has been undertaken in accordance with the Audit Plan that we presented at the 8 January 2018 Audit Committee meeting, as updated in the 
Audit Progress report presented at the 9 April Audit Committee, and is conducted in accordance with the National Audit Office's 2015 Code of Audit Practice, 
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), and other guidance issued by the National Audit Office. 

As auditors we are responsible for:

► Expressing an opinion:

► On the 2017/18 financial statements, and

► On the consistency of other information published with the financial statements.

► Forming a conclusion on the arrangements the Council has to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

► Reporting by exception:

► If the annual governance statement is misleading or not consistent with our understanding of the Council;

► Any significant matters that are in the public interest; 

► Any written recommendations to the Council, which should be copied to the Secretary of State; and

► If we have discharged our duties and responsibilities as established by thy Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and Code of Audit Practice. 

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO) on you Whole of Government Accounts return. The extent 
of our review and the nature of our report are specified by the NAO. We have yet to issue our assurance statement in respect of the Council’s Whole of Government 
Accounts consolidation pack. 

Responsibilities of the Council

The Council is responsible for preparing and publishing its statement of accounts accompanied by an Annual Governance Statement. In the AGS, the Council reports 
publicly each year on how far it complies with its own code of governance, including how it has monitored and evaluated the effectiveness of its governance 
arrangements in year, and any changes planned in the coming period. 

The Council is also responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

P
age 45



8

Financial Statement Audit03

P
age 46



9

Financial Statement Audit

Key Issues

The Council’s Statement of Accounts is an important tool for the Council to show how it has used public money and how it can demonstrate its financial management and 
financial health.

We audited the Council’s Statement of Accounts in line with the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, International Standards on Auditing (UK and 
Ireland), and other guidance issued by the National Audit Office and issued an unqualified audit report on 28 June 2018.

Our detailed findings were reported to the 28 June Audit Committee.

Significant Risk Conclusion

Misstatements due to fraud or error

The financial statements as a whole are not free of material 
misstatements whether caused by fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK and Ireland) 240, management is in a 
unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to 
manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and 
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls 
that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We identify 
and respond to this fraud risk on every audit engagement.

We have considered generic risk factors that could indicate how specific risks of management override 
manifests itself at the Council, such as the financial position and historic performance against budget. 
We have also considered the specific additional risks of management override as they relate to local 
government accounts. Based on our consideration of the key areas susceptible to management override 
we have concluded that the area that management have the greatest opportunity to override controls is 
within non system accruals where judgements and estimates are made. Having identified that non 
system accruals where judgements and estimates are made are the transactions most susceptible to 
management override, we identified the creditors account and other operating expenditure as the 
accounts on which additional audit focus was required. 

We have not identified any evidence of material management override.

We have not identified any instances of inappropriate judgements being applied.

We did not identify any other transactions during our audit which appeared unusual or outside the 
Council‘s normal course of business

Overall our audit work did not identify any material issues or unusual transactions to indicate any 
misreporting of the Council’s financial position.

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows:

P
age 47



10

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

Significant Risk Conclusion

Risk of fraud in revenue and expenditure recognition

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may 
be misstated due to improper revenue recognition. In the 
public sector, this requirement is modified by Practice 
Note 10 issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which 
states that auditors should also consider the risk that 
material misstatements may occur by the manipulation of 
expenditure recognition. 

In our Audit Plan we set out that this risk is focused around those items of income and expenditure which are 
non-routine and involve more management estimation and judgment such as year-end income and expenditure 
accruals and provisions. We have carefully considered the revenue and expenditure streams of the Council and 
considered each against the risk of fraud in revenue and expenditure recognition. In making this assessment, 
we have considered:

• Our assessment of the control environment at Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council relevant to 
opportunities and incentives to commit revenue recognition fraud

• The statutory framework in place to regulate local government finance
• The nature of the financial regime established in local government
• The nature of the financial transactions undertaken by Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, and 

whether these present both the opportunity and incentive to engage in material revenue 
manipulation

Having considered each of the streams, we concluded that, in view of our understanding of the revenue and 
expenditure streams, the risk of material misstatement arising from inappropriate revenue recognition has a 
low likelihood of occurrence and is unlikely to be of a size which would be material to the users of the financial 
statements. 

We therefore rebutted the risk of fraud in revenue and expenditure recognition. 

Based on our completed procedures on your financial statements, we concluded that this assessment remains 
appropriate. 

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows: (cont’d)

P
age 48



11

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

Other Key Findings Conclusion

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) represents a significant balance in the Council’s 
accounts and are subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and/or 
depreciation charges. Material judgemental inputs and estimation techniques are 
required to calculate the year-end PPE balances held in the balance sheet.
As the Council’s asset base is significant, and the outputs from the valuer are subject 
to estimation, there is a higher inherent risk PPE may be under/overstated or the 
associated accounting entries incorrectly posted.  

We designed audit procedures to address this key are of audit focus, including 
considering the work of the valuer and challenging the assumptions used 
comparing, where possible, to observable data.

We had no matters to report.

Pension liability valuation
The Council’s current pension fund deficit is a highly material and sensitive item and 
the Code requires that this liability be disclosed on the Council’s balance sheet. 
The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the Council by the 
actuary. As with other councils, accounting for this scheme involves significant 
estimation and judgement and due to the nature, volume and size of the transactions 
we consider this to be a higher inherent risk.

We designed audit procedures to address this key are of audit focus, including 
considering the work of the pension fund auditor. The pension fund auditor 
reported a difference in the assets of the pension fund linked to improved market 
conditions. As a result, the pension liability reported in the statements reduced by 
£2.4mn.

We had no other matters to report.

Earlier deadline for production and audit of the financial statements from 2017/18
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 introduced a significant change in 
statutory deadlines from the 2017/18 financial year. From that year the timetable 
for the preparation and approval of accounts will be brought forward with draft 
accounts needing to be prepared by 31 May and the publication of the audited 
accounts by 31 July.

These changes provide challenges for both the preparers and the auditors of the 
financial statements.

The Council has been well placed to meet the demands of the earlier deadline, 
having produced their financial statements well ahead of the statutory deadline in 
previous years.

There are areas where the Council can look to strengthen its arrangements in 
terms of:

- Identifying additional areas for early substantive testing prior to the final audit 
visit;

- Reviewing how some working papers are presented for audit to facilitate a more 
efficient execution of audit procedures.

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows: (cont’d)

P
age 49



12

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

When establishing our overall audit strategy, we determined a magnitude of uncorrected misstatements that we judged would be material for the financial statements as a whole.

Item Thresholds applied

Planning materiality We determined planning materiality to be £2.5mn (2017: £2.4mn), which is 75% of gross revenue expenditure reported in the 
accounts. 

We consider gross revenue expenditure to be one of the principal considerations for stakeholders in assessing the financial 
performance of the Council.

Reporting threshold We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £0.127mn (2017: 
£0.12mn)

We also identified the following areas where misstatement at a level lower than our overall materiality level might influence the reader. For these areas we developed an 
audit strategy specific to these areas. The areas identified and audit strategy applied include:

► Remuneration disclosures including any severance payments, exit packages and termination benefits

► Related party transactions. 

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light of other relevant qualitative 
considerations. 

Our application of materiality

P
age 50



Value for Money04

P
age 51



14

Value for Money

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. This is 
known as our value for money conclusion.

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise your arrangements to:

► Take informed decisions;

► Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and

► Work with partners and other third parties.

Proper 
arrangements for 
securing value for 

money
Working 

with 
partners 
and third 
parties

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment

Informed 
decision 
making

We did not identify any significant risks in relation to these criteria. We issued an unqualified value for money conclusion on 28 June 2018

P
age 52



15

Other Reporting Issues05

P
age 53



16

Other Reporting Issues

Whole of Government Accounts

The Council is below the specified audit threshold of £500mn. Therefore, we did not perform any audit procedures on the consolidation pack.

Annual Governance Statement

We are required to consider the completeness of disclosures in the Council’s annual governance statement, identify any inconsistencies with the other information of 
which we are aware from our work, and consider whether it is misleading.

We completed this work and did not identify any areas of concern.

Report in the Public Interest

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether, in the public interest, to report on any matter that comes to our attention in the 
course of the audit in order for it to be considered by the Council or brought to the attention of the public.

We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a report in the public interest.

Written Recommendations

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to designate any audit recommendation as one that requires the Council to consider it at a public 
meeting and to decide what action to take in response. 

We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a written recommendation.

P
age 54



17

Other Reporting Issues (cont’d)

Objections Received

We did not receive any objections to the 2017/18 financial statements from members of the public. 

Other Powers and Duties

We identified no issues during our audit that required us to use our additional powers under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. 

Independence

We communicated our assessment of independence in our Audit Results Report to the Audit Committee on 28 June 2018. In our professional judgement the firm is 
independent and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff has not been compromised within the meaning regulatory and professional 
requirements. 

Control Themes and Observations

As part of our work, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and extent of testing performed. 
Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, we are required to communicate to you significant deficiencies in 
internal control identified during our audit. 

We have adopted a fully substantive approach and have therefore not tested the operation of controls. 

P
age 55



18

Focused on your future06

P
age 56



19

Focused on your future

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom introduces the application of new accounting standards in future years. The impact on the 
Council is summarised in the table below. 

Standard Issue Impact

IFRS 9 Financial 
Instruments

Applicable for local authority accounts from the 2018/19 financial year and 
will change:

• How financial assets are classified and measured;

• How the impairment of financial assets are calculated; and 

• The disclosure requirements for financial assets.

There are transitional arrangements within the standard and the 2018/19 
Accounting Code of Practice for Local Authorities has now been issued, 
providing guidance on the application of IFRS 9. In advance of the Guidance 
Notes being issued, CIPFA have issued some provisional information providing 
detail on the impact on local authority accounting of IFRS 9, however the key 
outstanding issue is whether any accounting statutory overrides will be 
introduced to mitigate any impact.

Although the Code has now been issued, providing guidance on the 
application of the standard, along with other provisional information 
issued by CIPFA on the approach to adopting IFRS 9, until the 
Guidance Notes are issued and any statutory overrides are 
confirmed there remains some uncertainty. However, what is clear 
is that the Council will have to:

• Reclassify existing financial instrument assets

• Re-measure and recalculate potential impairments of those 
assets; and 

• Prepare additional disclosure notes for material items.

IFRS 15 Revenue 
from Contracts 
with Customers

Applicable for local authority accounts from the 2018/19 financial year. This 
new standard deals with accounting for all contracts with customers except:

• Leases;

• Financial instruments;

• Insurance contracts; and

• For local authorities; Council Tax and NDR income.

The key requirements of the standard cover the identification of performance 
obligations under customer contracts and the linking of income to the 
meeting of those performance obligations.

Now that the 2018/19 Accounting Code of Practice for Local Authorities has 
been issued it is becoming clear what the impact on local authority accounting 
will be. As the vast majority of revenue streams of Local Authorities fall 
outside the scope of IFRS 15, the impact of this standard is likely to be 
limited.

As with IFRS 9, some provisional information on the approach to 
adopting IFRS 15 has been issued by CIPFA in advance of the 
Guidance Notes. Now that the Code has been issued, initial views 
have been confirmed; that due to the revenue streams of Local 
Authorities the impact of this standard is likely to be limited.

The standard is far more likely to impact on Local Authority Trading 
Companies who will have material revenue streams arising from 
contracts with customers. Where appropriate, the Council will need 
to consider the impact of this on their own group accounts when 
that trading company is consolidated.

P
age 57



20

Focused on your future (cont’d)

Standard Issue Impact

IFRS 16 Leases It is currently proposed that IFRS 16 will be applicable for local authority 
accounts from the 2019/20 financial year. 

Whilst the definition of a lease remains similar to the current leasing standard; 
IAS 17, for local authorities who lease a large number of assets the new 
standard will have a significant impact, with nearly all current leases being 
included on the balance sheet. 

There are transitional arrangements within the standard and although the 
2019/20 Accounting Code of Practice for Local Authorities has yet to be 
issued, CIPFA have issued some limited provisional information which begins 
to clarify what the impact on local authority accounting will be. Whether any 
accounting statutory overrides will be introduced to mitigate any impact 
remains an outstanding issue.

Until the 2019/20 Accounting Code is issued and any statutory 
overrides are confirmed there remains some uncertainty in this 
area. 

However, what is clear is that the Council will need to undertake a 
detailed exercise to identify all of its leases and capture the relevant 
information for them. The Council must therefore ensure that all 
lease arrangements are fully documented.

P
age 58



21

Audit Fees07

P
age 59



22

Audit Fees

Our fee for 2017/18 is reported in the table below.

Description

Final Fee 2017/18

£

Planned Fee 2017/18

£

Scale Fee 2017/18

£

Final Fee 2016/17

£

Total Audit Fee – Code work TBC 62,235 62,235 66,416

Total Audit Fee – Certification of claims and 
returns 

TBC 7,914 7,914 13,328

We confirm we have not undertaken any non-audit work outside of the PSAA’s requirements.

We are considering our final fee for our 2017/18 Code work and will report any adjustment to the final fee in our 2018/19 Audit Plan.

We have yet to conclude our 2017/18 certification of the housing subsidy claim and are therefore not in a position to conclude on the final fee for 2017/18

P
age 60



EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction
and advisory services. The insights and quality
services we deliver help build trust and confidence
in the capital markets and in economies the world
over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to
deliver on our promises to all of our stakeholders.
In so doing, we play a critical role in building a better 
working world for our people, for our clients and for
our communities.

EY refers to the global organization, and may refer
to one or more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young
Global Limited, each of which is a separate legal entity.
Ernst & Young Global Limited, a UK company limited
by guarantee, does not provide services to clients.
For more information about our organization, please
visit ey.com.

© 2018 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

EY-000070901-01 (UK) 07/18. CSG London.

In line with EY’s commitment to minimise its
impact on the environment, this document has
been printed on paper with a high recycled content.

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes
only and is not intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other 
professional advice. Please refer to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

P
age 61



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	8 RISK MANAGEMENT
	Appendix A - Strategic Risks - updated
	Appendix B - Top Operational Risks

	9 SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE - PROGRESS REPORT
	10 SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE - ANNUAL REPORT
	11 ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

